Haringey Counci NOTICE OF MEETING

Children's Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Advisory Committee

TUESDAY, 2ND JULY, 2013 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD GREEN,
LONDON N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou, Alexander, Browne, Corrick, Scott and Stewart (Chair)

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will
be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at
Item 12 &15 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw
from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct.



4. MINUTES (PAGES 1-8)

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 30™ April 2013.
5. MATTERS ARISING (PAGES 9 -12)
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE (PAGES 13 - 16)

To note the terms of reference for this Committee agreed by Cabinet on 18" June
2013.

7. PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT - END OF YEAR 2012/13 (PAGES 17 - 42)

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures
relating to: Children and Families - Contacts, referrals and assessments and Child
Protection.

8. ADOPTION PERFORMANCE UPDATE (PAGES 43 -48)

The report will inform Members of the progress made in the performance of the
Adoption Service in placing children for adoption and special guardianship since the
publication of the Adoption Scorecard and the Adoption Diagnostic Review in
Summer 2012.

9. UPDATE ON THE MOSAIC PROGRAMME (PAGES 49 - 50)

At their meeting in November 2012, the Committee agreed to monitor the
implementation of the MOSAIC programme, which would start in 2013.The
Committee will consider an update report on MOSAIC which is a major
redevelopment of FWi, Haringey’s social care recording system, which is being
designed and developed in partnership with the supplier and 14 other early adopter
authorities.

10. LOCAL AUTHORITY DESIGNATED OFFICER ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 (PAGES
51 - 66)

This is the Local Authority Designated Officer's (LADO) annual report of allegations
made against adults who work with children. The report provides profiling analysis of
allegations made in the Borough, comparative data and an update of the interventions
and development work completed during 2012/13.

11. REPORT FROM INDEPENDENT MEMBER (PAGES 67 - 74)



At the last meeting, the Committee were made aware that training on information
sharing was being provided to staff within the service as well as advice and guidance
to other agencies . The Committee wanted to also explore the engagement with wider
community groups on the changes relating to information sharing and their roles and
responsibility. On behalf of the Committee , the independent member undertook to
report on the outcome of these training activities by auditing a sample of new
referrals.

12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider new items of business as per item 2.

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following report is NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph 5 of Part | of

Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as it contains information classified
as exempt under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains
information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.

14. CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING AND INFORMATION SHARING - LEGAL ADVICE
(PAGES 75 - 82)
The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the Counsel’s advice and
action required.

15. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS
To consider new items of exempt business as per item 2.

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Date of next meeting: 17" September 7.30pm.

David McNulty Ayshe Simsek

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Co-ordinator

5™ Floor Tel: 0208 489 2929

River Park House Fax: 0208 881 5218

225 High Road Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ






Page 1 Aqunda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND"PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

Councillors Adamou, Allison, Corrick and Stewart (Chair)

Apologies Councillor Bull and Scott

Also Present: Councillor Waters, Libby Blake, Marion Wheeler, Lisa Blundell, Lisa
Redfern, Sue Southgate, Chrissy Austin.

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CSPAP | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
C133

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bull and Councillor
Scott.

CSPAP | URGENT BUSINESS
C134

There were no items of urgent business submitted.

CSPAP | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
C135

There were no declarations of interest put forward.

CSPAP | MINUTES
C136

The minutes of the meeting held on the 21% March 2013 were approved
as an accurate record of the meeting.

CSPAP | MATTERS ARISING
C137

Agreed that report on the MASH, Adoption and the broader
consideration of Adults services referrals to Children’s Services (if ready) | AD CS
be considered at the July meeting.

CSPAP | PERFORMANCE REPORT
C138

The Assistant Director of Children’s Services outlined the main highlights
of the Performance report.

The rate of children in care continued to decrease with 92 per 10,000,
and although this was still higher than similar statistical neighbouring
boroughs, it was a significant reduction from this point last year




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

(101).This was against the current national trend, where numbers were
increasing. The Independent Member commented, that as numbers of
looked after children increased nationally, there was a real national
debate emerging on who is cared for by the local authority.

The Committee noted that the numbers of contacts and referrals was
continuing to decrease at a good rate .The number of children subject to
a child protection plan increased by 34 and although this was a reduction
in the number and rate for February , it was, overall, still a higher number
than statistical neighbouring boroughs . As highlighted at the last
meeting, there had been a review into the thresholds being applied to
place a child on a protection plan against the reasons to take a child off
a plan. There was now a focus to ensure that the actions taken in the
first three months of a plan maximise the possibilities for the child
coming off a plan.

Meetings continued with independent child protection advisors to ensure
that children remained on protection plans for the right reasons. The
introduction of the Haringey 54000 programme would also greatly assist
in the providing early help to families and in turn limiting the need for
authoritative intervention from Children’s social care services. The
increase of children on plans was likely to be associated with the
decrease in number of looked after children. It was recognised that both
these figures were higher than statistical neighbouring boroughs.
However, the Independent Member advised the Committee to keep in
mind that there should be no ‘right’ or ‘wrong’ number of children on
plans or in care. It was ensuring the right children were on plans and that
children were being taken of child protection plans at the right time.
Confidence in efforts to reduce the numbers of LAC should be taken
from the fact that there was a steady decline in number and not a
sudden decrease which would be more concerning.

There was a discussion about the number of days it took to adopt a
child. It was recognised that performance in this area had greatly
improved through continual business analysis of data and through the
relentless pursuit, by managers, to ensure each step of the adoption
process was completed on time; however there was still a need to
improve on timescales. The Independent Member spoke about
conversations on adoption, as an option, starting at the screening stage.
In response, it was noted that the new Permanency policy does include
the need to start considering the option of adoption at the point of the
core assessment. It was noted that the pathway to adoption involved
both Children’s’ Cabinet Advisory Committees and as the Chair was
keen that the Committee gain an understanding of pathway to adoption
and have sight of the care planning. It was agreed the Director and
Assistant Director of Children’s Service discuss this request and provide | Dir

a report on adoption which meets with the remit of the Children’s CS/AD
Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee. Agreed that this report CS
come forward to the next meeting in July.

The Committee noted the difficulty in setting a performance target for



Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

protection plans lasting more than two years. The service have to
consider the level of risks that are being mitigated against by the child
being on the plan, and keep up awareness of the number of families on
plans. Therefore, having a target helps ensure the service is continually
reviewing the families to ensure that the children are on the plans for the
right reasons and that the risk is being effectively managed. There are
currently 26 families in this predicament and the overall sense, in the
service, is that the families are right to be on these plans for this period
of time.

In terms of the percentage of child protection cases which are reviewed
within timescales, although the targets were close to being met, there
was a consistent traffic light of red for the past 6 months and the
Committee queried whether this target should be lower. It was explained
that this was an inspirational target and in line with what good/excellent
local authorities achieve. In the coming financial year, when the new
targets for performance indicators were being set, account would be
taken of the new single assessment process.

CSPAP | NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
C139

There were no new items of urgent business put forward.

CSPAP | EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
C140

The Chair, had received legal advice from the deputy monitoring officer,
before the start of the meeting, advising that the report on Screening
written by the Independent Member of the Committee would be suitable
for consideration in the open part of the meeting as the information
would not make any person identifiable. The Committee agreed to move
this report to the open part of the meeting and agreed for it to be | Clerk
published on the council’s website.

CSPAP | ADULT REFERRALS
C141

Section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004 places a statutory duty on persons
and bodies to ensure they have proper and robust arrangements to
safeguard and promote the welfare of children. In the summer of 2012
the LSCB asked key partners agencies, including Adult services, to audit
their services in respect of this role in supporting the safeguarding of
children. The key meeting points between Children’s and Adults services
would be substance mis-use, clients with mental health issues and
adults with learning difficulties.

A case file audit process was in place and three questions were added
to audits to ascertain if the client had contact with children and young
people, were there any concerns related to the welfare of children and




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

young people and whether contact had been made with CYPS. There
were a total of 15 cases identified that involved a referral from Adult
Services to Children’s Services and the Independent Member had
audited them and found that all the referrals were appropriate and dealt
with promptly.

The Independent Member remarked on the small number of referrals as
she had expected more referrals relating to clients with mental health
issues or domestic violence. The Committee were asked to keep in
mind, that two thirds of the clients in Adults service are older people with
over 3000 people in receipt of services It was clarified that these were
cases that had been referred to Adults through the SOVA (Safeguarding
of Vulnerable Adults) referral process. This audit sample did not
encompass clients that are responsibility of: Adults with Learning
Difficulties, Drugs Alcohol Action team, Adults with Physical Disabilities.
Assistant Director for Adults and Community services offered to AD
complete further sampling on these areas and there could be contact Adults
with Drugs Alcohol Action team to also ask if they could participate in a
qualitative audit as well.

In line with the Children’s services wider support to families, the
Committee felt it would be worthwhile examining how referrals from
Children’s services are taken forward by Adults services along with how | HC
referrals were taken forward by Children’s Services, once received by
Adults services.

Reference was made to case number 13 and it was agreed that an
update on this particular case was brought back to the next Committee AD CS
meeting.

CSPAC | AUDIT OF A SAMPLE OF REFERRALS MADE BY THE SCREENING
142 TEAM

The Independent Member had completed a case audit of referrals to the
Screening team .In the introduction section of the report the Independent
Member had provided some background to the audit and made
references to the Judicial Review. The Independent Member clarified
that she may have over emphasised certain aspects of the case. For
example, the background wrongly implied that the unlawful sharing of
information stemmed from the information sharing strategy in use by the
MASH. This was implied in the judgement but not stipulated.

The Independent Member had completed her case audit of referrals; 4
days after the temporary information sharing protocol had been put in
place. The Committee noted that there around 20-25 referrals to the First
Response team every day with discussions held with the referrer when
they are received. The Committee heard about the different kinds of
case referrals received by the Screening team and the sources of the
referral. The Independent Member had examined if consent was being
sought and where consent was not given the details of the actions taken.
In the cases looked at there was good recording of the checks being




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

made and permissions to share information being sought was recorded.
The report advised that the managers had absorbed the issues raised by
the judgement in the cases seen.

It was explained to the Committee that when First Response receive a
referral it will sometimes be obvious that a strategy meeting is needed
but there will be cases where the information provided is ambiguous and
there will need to be further clarifications provided from the referrer to
assess the right way forward. It was explained to the Committee that,
prior to the Judicial Review, some cases where information was missing,
would be considered by the MASH (Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub) for
an early view and some were dismissed at this stage. The judgement
currently suggests that, where there is ambiguous information provided
in a referral and it does not meet threshold for social care assessment,
you cannot make enquiries with partners and agencies about the family
without parental consent.

In response to a question about information needed to take forward a
section 47 investigation ,where it is not clear that this type of intervention
is needed a section 17 should be implemented and this will enable a
visit to the family. After this a move to a section 47 investigation can be
made, if needed. The Committee were advised that , if it is not clear
whether a section 17 or section 47 investigation is required, the
judgement currently implies that no action is taken . This still leaves
the service with an open case until consent is obtained from the parent
by the referrer or Screening team or information is obtained which meets
the threshold for a section 17 investigation.

The Committee were advised that the way forward was encouraging the
referrer (Midwife, Teacher, and GP) who was in contact with the family
seeking consent to make enquiries about the welfare of the child/young
person. The merits of this were that the family are being approached by
a professional that they already have a working relationship with. The
Committee highlighted that the referrer will need to be sufficiently
confident in this responsibility and trained appropriately to approach the
subject of their concern about the child with the parents and seek
approval to make further enquiries about the welfare of the child. The
Committee further commented that the social worker would be
experienced and educated in the role of approaching a family or person
as opposed to a professional from the third sector that may not have the
necessary skills to perform this role. The Committee were advised that,
in terms of reporting issues and making referrals to First Response,
going forward, if there was more onuses placed on schools and other
agencies for taking forward their concerns with the family this would lead
to better reporting and better ownership of the issues to be addressed.

The Committee learnt that there were a range of reasons why parental
consent could be dispensed with and these would need to be written
down before action, such as a section 47, is taken forward. This was one
of the areas the council was found not to have fulfilled appropriately in
the Judicial Review.




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

The Committee were further asked to note that the council was still
waiting formal interpretation of the full implications of the judgment on
information sharing between partners from a QC who specialised in data
protection. When received, this advice and its implications would be
formally considered at the LSCB and by this Committee. The Committee
were keen to ensure that wider community groups and stakeholders
were aware of the current status of information sharing and their
responsibility for providing quality information at the time of the referral to
avoid ambiguity and quicker assessment of the referral. They would also
need to be clear on their responsibilities for seeking consent from
parents to share information with partners. The Chair felt there should be
a formal process around this to ensure there was adherence to these
responsibilities, especially for organisations that may not be in daily
contact with Children Services and will not be fully aware of the changes.
A formal process will allow issues around compliance to be raised. The
Committee wanted to ensure that all local stakeholders that are in
contact with children/families were fully aware of their responsibilities
and did not sit on information because they were unsure of the process
or had the skills to take a referral forward. The Chair requested an
update on engagement and involvement with wider community
groups/stakeholders at the next meeting.

In connection with the responsibilities of professionals and support
workers working with families, the Committee were informed that clear
direction would ensure there was no anxiety at the ground level when
working with families. This would really reassure the work force and help
with judgement calls. This would in turn translate into better
performance. It was important to be clear on the specifics of a case and
provide wider understanding of the implications. The clear message
being given out by the service was that if you record you protect. There
should be clear accountable reasons for ignoring consent of the parent
to share information.

The Committee agreed to consider advice of the QC on information
sharing at their next meeting in July and get a wider report back on
engagement with wider community groups on the changes relating to Dir CS
information sharing and their roles and responsibility.

CSPAP | UPDATE ON THE PROTOCOLS FOR INFORMATION SHARING BY
C143 THE MASH(MULTI AGENCY SAFEGUARDING HUB)

Agreed that the advice of the QC on the implications for partner’s Dir CS
information sharing is considered at the next meeting in July.

CSPAP | NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS
C144




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 30 APRIL 2013

There were no items of exempt urgent business put forward.

CSPAP | ANY OTHER BUSINESS
C145

There were no other items of business.

Clir James Stewart

Chair



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planhing 2013/14

Date of the | Reports and background information Officer /| Member

meeting leading on the
report

02 July 2013 1. The Committee agreed to monitor the
7.30pm MOSAIC programme implementation
in 2013 so that the required change
process did not impact unduly on the
performance of the safeguarding service | Marion Wheeler
and its social care of children and young
people

2. advice of the QC on information sharing | Libby Blake/Legal
and implications for the MASH

Marion

3. Report on adoption which meets with Wheeler/Paul
the remit of the Children’s Safeguarding | McCarthy
Policy and Practice Committee

4. Wider report back on engagement with

wider community groups on the Marion
changes relating to information sharing | Wheeler/Chrissy
and their roles and responsibility. Austin
5. Performance figures Margaret Gallagher
6. LADO report Rachel Oakley

Reeorts will be due with Marion Wheeler on
17" June

Agenda published on the 24" June

17th
September 1. Annual Report from Child Protection
2013 7.30pm Advisors

2. Hilary Corrick and Helen Constantine
to complete an audit of referrals for the
period 1/4/12 to 31/3/13 and take a
sample across all service areas:

e Phys Dis team

e MH service

e LD service

e (any others to be confirmed)
and look at:

e How Adult & Children’s Services are
working together — especially in open

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929



Page 10

Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planning 2013/14

Date of the | Reports and background information Officer /| Member
meeting leading on the
report
cases; and
e What were the outcomes for children
Margaret Gallagher
3. Performance figures
Reports will be due with Marion Wheeler on
02 September
Agenda will be published on the gth
September
05 Joint meeting with Corporate Parenting
November Update on the MST Programme
Reports will be due with Marion Wheeler on
215 October
Agenda will be published on 28" October
23 January
2014 Performance figures
7.30pm
Reports will be due with Marion Wheeler
on 8" January 2014
Agenda pack will be published on the 15"
January 2014
06 March Joint meeting with Corporate Parenting
2014 7.30pm
Reports will be due with Marion Wheeler on
19" March 2014.
Agenda pack will be published on 26" Feb
2014
1 April 2014
7.30pm

Reports will be due with Marion Wheeler
on 17" March 2014.

Reports will be published on 24™ March
2014

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929




Page 11
Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planning 2013/14

Suggestions for committee members to get more of an understanding how
different areas of safeguarding services work by visiting teams and watching
them in action.

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



N Page 13 Agenda ltem 6

=

Haringey

Children’s Safeguarding ltem
Report for: Policy and Practice )

. Number:

Committee
Title: Terms of reference
Report
Authorised by:
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration
To note the terms of reference agreed by Cabinet on 18" June 2013.
2. Cabinet Member introduction
N/A
3. Recommendations
To ratify the terms of reference
4. Other options considered
N/A
5. Background information
Provision exists in the Council Constitution for the Cabinet to establish advisory or
consultative bodies the membership of which is not limited to Cabinet Members.

The Joint Area Review report into Haringey’s Children Services in 2009 identified
the need to improve governance of safeguarding arrangements for children. This

Page 1 of 4



Page 14

X

77
Haringey
committee was formally established in July 2009, when it was also agreed that the

terms of reference of this committee would be reviewed following the 2010 Local
Elections.

Since its establishment there were further discussion highlighted the work of the
committee and its alignment to the Cabinet as an advisory committee. Similarities of
the committee’s role to scrutiny and its position in the committee structure were
discussed and it was felt that the committee was correctly aligned to the Cabinet as
an Advisory Committee. The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Committee was then established to work in parallel to the Corporate Parenting
Advisory Committee and had duties for overseeing the Council’s responsibility for
children in need, particularly focussing on safeguarding including children who
would come into contact with safeguarding policies.

Members further agreed that the profile of the committee should be raised and there
should be more awareness of the committee’s work. This would be assisted by
increasing officer attendance at meetings and by amending the constitution of the
committee so that it was more in line with the arrangements for the Corporate
Parenting Committee. This would involve:

e Increasing and defining the officer representatives to support the committee
e Compiling a twice yearly report to the Cabinet and to the Council annually

To further aid the parallel working of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and
Practice Committee and the Corporate Parenting Committee, joint meetings have
taken place since 2011. Both committees have also wanted to share information on
their continuing work on safeguarding and corporate parenting and both sets of
committee members are being included in the email distribution list of the minutes
from meetings.

The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee has also continued
undertaking detailed case scrutiny into chosen day to day safeguarding practices.
Members would continue to receive key safeguarding data at meetings to scrutinize
and training sessions on safeguarding processes would be maintained to ensure
that the committee were fully aware of safeguarding practices being followed by the
Council.

The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee was formally
established by the Cabinet on the 18" June with the following terms of reference
and membership.

Children Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee

Membership

Page 2 of 4



Page 15

X

=

Haringey
Councillors: Stewart (Chair)
Browne
Adamou
Alexander
Scott

Hilary Corrick (Non-Councillor Member - appointed by the Panel)
Quorum

The quorum will be two members.

The terms of reference are set out below:

a. To examine and consider the effectiveness of the Council’s policies and
practice, relating to the safeguarding of children.

b. To examine and consider the effectiveness of the arrangements for co-
operation on child protection matters between partner agencies.

c. To consider the Council’s policies and performance relating to safeguarding
through observing practice in Haringey and obtaining the views of key
stakeholders (staff, families and children /young people) to attain a
qualitative understanding of safeguarding practice.

d. To make recommendations on these matters to the Cabinet or Cabinet
Member for Children and Young People and Director of Children and Young
People’s Service in taking forward improvements to safeguarding of children.

e. The Chair will determine the Committee’s procedures and the means for
conveying the Committee’s views to the Cabinet but, in the event of any
dispute, the outcome will be determined by the majority vote of the
Committee’s membership with the Chair having a casting vote.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Report to the Cabinet on 24 February 2009 entitled Action Plan in Response to the
Joint Area Review of Safeguarding in Haringey.

Page 3 of 4



Page 16

X

.

Report to the Cabinet on 21 July 2009 entitled Appointment of Cabinet Advisory
Committees.

Report to Cabinet on 15 July 2010 entitled Appointment of Cabinet Committees.

Report to cabinet on 22 March 2011 entitled Reconstitution of the Children’s
Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee.

Report to Cabinet on 12 June 2012 entitled Appointment of Cabinet Advisory
Committees.

Report to Cabinet on 18 June 2013 entitled Appointment of Cabinet Advisory
Committees.

The background paper is located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect it or to discuss this report further, please contact Ayshe Simsek on 020
8489 2929.

Page 4 of 4



N Page 17 Agenda ltem 7

=

Haringey
Children’s Safeguarding ltem
Report for: Policy and Practice Number:
Committee 2 July 2013 )
Title: Performance Assessment — End of Year 2012/13

Report

Authorised by: Marion Wheeler/ Libby Blake

Lead Officer: Margaret Gallagher

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:

All NA

1. Introduction

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures relating
to:

¢ Children and Families - Contacts, referrals and assessments and Child Protection

Appendix 1 provides further detail in the form of tables and graphs for each of the agreed
measures, grouped by topic, showing monthly data, performance against target, long term
trends and benchmarking where applicable. It also contains performance and service
comments for each area to provide context.



Page 18

Performance Highlights/ Key Messages

O

O

There has been a 5.5% reduction in the number of children in care since the end of
March 2012. 541 children were in care on the last day of March or 94 per 10,000
population, which remains higher than the level in similar boroughs although a
significant reduction on this point last year (rate 100).

There was a recent downward trend in number of children subject to a child
protection plan which decreased by 44 between February and March 2013. At the
end of March there were 275 children subject to a plan a rate of 47.8 per 10,000
population and although still higher than the England average brings the rate closer
to Haringey’s rate in 2011/12 (49) and that of our statistical neighbours (40).

There were 6,637 contacts in 2012/13 a similar level to 2011/12 and 28% of these
contacts proceeded to referral compared with 34.3% in 2011/12.

There was an 18.5% reduction in referrals between 2012/13 and 2011/12.
Re-referrals within 12 months of the previous referral at 15% is in line with our
target (16%) and slightly below our statistical neighbours.

Performance on initial and core assessments completed in timescale was below
target, there was improvement on 2011/2012 levels for core assessments but
proportions completed in 21 days+ for initials and 61 days+ for cores remain high and
comparatively poor. Performance for both areas is still below levels achieved by our
statistical neighbours and across England.

7% of child protection plans last 2 years or more higher than the England position
of 5.6% but slightly lower than our statistical neighbours and London.

4.8% of children have become the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a second
or subsequent time lower than the 12.7% reported by our statistical neighbours in
2011/12.

93.8% of child protection visits completed to timescale as at the end of March, a
dip on higher performance levels achieved throughout the year partially due to
calendar month recording where a large proportion of visits outstanding were
completed within 2 or 3 days after the month end

85% of children in need visits were completed in time

2.1. Contacts, Referrals and Assessments and Child Protection

2.1.1. The number of contacts decreased slightly to 501 in March. The yearend

figure is very close to last year’'s outturn, 6,637 contacts compared with
6,722 in 2011/12. 28% of contacts in 2012/13 proceeded to referral
compared with 34.3% in 2011/12.

2.1.2. The Screening Team which incorporates the MASH has developed strong

relationships with referrers in providing clear and robust advice around
thresholds and information sharing. The team’s stability has contributed to
increasing trust when referrers discuss their concerns. Through the
application of the LSCB Threshold, discussions occur as to alternative
strategies of intervention through CAF and the voluntary sector. The
screening team have held workshops with schools to continue to improve
the communication and interface. These workshops will be rolled out to
other partners such as midwifery Departments and health visitors.

2.1.3. Referrals have decreased steadily over recent years. In 2012/13 we

received 2,045 referrals (rate 355 per 10,000 population); this is a 38%




Page 19

reduction on 2009/10 levels and an 18.5% reduction from 2011/12.
Haringey’s rate (per 10,000 population) of referrals is historically below that
of statistical neighbours. In 2012/13 Haringey’s annual rate of referrals was
355 down from 436 per 10,000 population compared with a rate of 541 for
our statistical neighbours (2011/12). In Haringey the MASH process
determines the nature of the intervention. Contacts are only progressed to
referral when the threshold criterion for statutory intervention has been met.

2.1.4. An analysis of MASH data for 2012/13 revealed that the main source of
referral was the Police followed by schools/education. For those where a
presenting need was selected, the count for domestic violence as the
outcome was the highest with neglect and physical abuse the next highest
presenting need. We are also monitoring the timeliness between contact/
referral and proceeding to MASH. The data covering the period February to
April 2013 suggests that the average working days for processing
information gathering has reduced from 6.5 in February to 4.5 days in April
since the judgement although it should be noted that there were fewer
assessments in April.

2.1.5. There is a considerable amount of work around early help analysis
underway which should enable us to evidence whether the reduction in
contacts and referrals is as a result of us meeting need earlier either
through CAFs or provision of universal services. The majority of CAFs
are undertaken in school and early year’s settings, with social workers
completing the bulk of the remainder. There were 130 CAFs initiated by
social care staff in 2012/13, 14% of the total and there appears to be an
increasing trend in this area which we see as positive. There has been a
decreasing trend in CAFs undertaken by health visitors particularly in the
last quarter. The majority of CAFs completed by social care staff are for
Family Support or CIN child care provision. 20% of services allocated in
2012/13 as a result of CAF were for family support. This might be indicative
of an increase in the cases being effectively ‘stepped down’ as well as
ensuring effective joint working for children subject to CP plans that will
then facilitate ‘step down’ arrangements in the future.

2.1.6. Haringey’s proportion of referrals going on to initial assessment dropped
to be more in line with the London average. 87% of our referrals went onto
initial assessment in 2012/13 compared to 99% in 2011/12. The London
average 77% (2011/12) and the England average (2011/12). The quality of
the information obtained at the screening stage allows for managers to be
able to clearly establish whether a statutory assessment is required and
what that assessment should be.

2.1.7. Haringey’s rate of re-referrals within 12 months of the previous referral at
15% is in line with our target (16%) and our statistical neighbours. It is at a
similar level to that reported in 2011/12 (16.6%). For 2012/13 this relates to
313 re-referrals out of 2,045 referrals. Re referrals are regularly analysed
for trends and themes. The relatively low re referral rate over the last year
would indicate that the work of the First Response Service is getting the

Page 3 of 8



Page 20

threshold right when exiting assessments and that appropriate support has
been identified, avoiding referral back into the service.

2.1.8. Haringey is expecting to implement the Single Assessment model (this
does not delineate between Initial and Core assessments) in July 2013.
Much work has been done to ensure that the systems are in place to
support both the recording and tracking of assessments. Reporting will
include the percentage of children that were seen within 10 days as part of
the assessment and the proportion of assessments completed within 45
days. We will continue to track the distribution of working days taken to
complete an assessment as we do now for both initial and core
assessments.

2.1.9. Performance on initial assessments carried out in 10 days reduced
slightly in recent months. In 2012/13 70% were completed in 10 days short
of the 80% target. Although performance in this area has improved
overtime it remains below that of our statistical neighbours (81.7% in 10
days). The First Response Service continues to focus on improving the
performance for completion within timescale. The introduction of the Single
Assessment in 2013 will set a new target with the expectation that a child
will be seen within ten days of the assessment being triggered. The Service
will aim to ensure that a target of 95% will be met for 2013/14. This reflects
its' priority to Safeguarding and ensuring appropriate support is in place for
children.

2.1.10. The distribution of working days taken to complete an initial
assessment for March shows that in addition to the 70% completed within
10 days, 11% were completed within 11-15 days. Analysis of CIN published
data showed that Haringey had the 3™ highest percentage of initial
assessments completed in 21 days plus, 18% compared with a statistical
neighbour position of 9% and 10% in England. In 2012/13 16% of initial
assessments were completed in 21 days plus. The graph below shows the
distribution of days for completion of initial assessments in 2012/13:

Page 4 of 8



Page 21

Number of days taken to complete
initial assessments (2012/13)

argettimescaleis
40% 70% thi
30% within 10 days
20%
10% l
v  mm |
0 15 610 11-15 1620 21+
Days

2.1.11 There was an improvement in performance in March with 74% of Core
assessments completed in timescale (35 working days), below the 85%
target. Performance has also improved on 2011/12 levels. The improved
performance in this area reflects the impact that the Performance meetings
have had across the service over the last year. Managers have focused on
ensuring quality assessments are completed and children have been seen
in a timely manner.

2.1.12The Single Assessment introduction will lead to a revised timescale of 45
days with no Initial assessment demarcation. Managers will therefore be
expected to be even more focused on setting target completion dates and
tracking that these are adhered to. Analysis of 2011/12 Children in Need
published data found that Haringey had the 4" highest ranking in London
for core assessments taking 61 days plus with 14% of cores taking more
than 61 days to complete compared to a statistical neighbour average of
5% and 9% for England. In 2012/13 13% of cores completed took more
than 61 days to complete. The graph below shows the distribution of days
for completion of core assessments in 2012/13.

Page 5 of 8



Page 22

Number of days taken to complete
core assessments (2012/13)

€0% 1 ) le]
I Target limescaleis
o6 70% ;
I 85% within 35 days

e m - B

<10 11-20 21-30 30-35 35-40 41-50 51-60 61+
Days

2.1.13 The rate of children subject to a child protection plan is the lowest it has
been since April 2012, 48 per 10,000 population in March (275 children), a
reduction of 44 children on a plan since last month. February and March
would be the first months where recent practice developments could have
impacted. It is understood that 2 main factors have contributed to the fall in
numbers of children on a CP plan; an audit of CP cases held within
Safeguarding and Support which identified issues of thresholds and
effectiveness of CP plans and Practice development partners reviewed all
cases with extended CP plans to consider progressing cases and learning
re drift etc. Further reduction in numbers are forecast over the next twelve
months and data as at the end of May 2013 suggests a continued reduction
with 225 children subject to a CP Plan, a further 72 children who ceased to
be subject to plan in April and May and a net decrease of 46 children.

2.1.141In 2011/12 more children ceased rather than became subject to a cp
plan and the same is true in 2012/13 although to a lesser extent, a net
decrease of 9 children in the year. Although the last year has seen an
increase of children moving into Haringey on a CP plan (25 in 2012/13), the
last 4 months have bucked the trend with 17 children moving out of
Haringey on a CP plan and overall a net decrease of 2. We are now more
effective at transferring cases in a timely manner when a family have
moved out of Haringey but this indicator is impacted on by housing
availability and affordability. It is predicted that changes will be seen
following the impact of benefit changes in April.

2.1.15 Other authorities are reporting decreasing trends in the number of children
subject to plan but many are noticing correlating increases in the numbers
subject to a plan for a second and subsequent time with some of the
returning cases going back 3 or 4 years. Haringey has not observed an
increase on this measure but will need to closely monitor the repeat
numbers and the gap between plans in the coming year.

Page 6 of 8



Page 23

2116 4.8% or 17 out of 353 children have become the subject of a Child

Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time this year which is
lower than the 12.7% reported by our statistical neighbours in 2011/12. This
may relate to children being on plans rather longer than in other comparator
boroughs and excludes children who were on a CP Plan in another
authority.

2117 7% of child protection plans last 2 years or more (25 out of 359

children) in the year to March slightly higher than London but lower than our
statistical neighbours (9.1%). A system to routinely scrutinise cases which
have gone over 18 months has been established and will start reporting in
July 2013. It should be noted that in some cases the CP plan should be
extended. There are a small number of cases — particularly with older
children, where an extended period of CP planning does not indicate drift,
but represents the best way of managing risk and focusing on improved
outcomes.

95.1% of child protection cases were reviewed within timescales in
the year (215 out of 266). The reviews out of timescale were all cases
which had transferred in from other boroughs, after the initial conference
the first review was scheduled as a subsequent review (6 month gap) and
not at three months. When this was identified the case files were checked
and it was established that each review was convened to a time scale
which was appropriate to the circumstances of the case. There are on
occasions sound practice based reasons for delay.

2.1.19 93.8% of Child Protection visits completed to timescale at the end of

March, below the 95% target for the first time in several months partially
due to calendar month recording where a large proportion of visits
outstanding were completed within 2 or 3 days after the month end.
Systems are now in place for managers in Safeguarding & Support teams
to check occurrence of visits, the timely writing up of visits and the quality of
both social work and recording.

2.1.20 Children in Need visits dipped slightly as at the end of March, 84.6%,

which although below target is above levels achieved in 2011/12. The
expectation is that all children considered in need and at a threshold
requiring social work allocation should be visited at a minimum of once a
month. Target for the service is to bring this visiting frequency in line with
CP visits. A review of CIN cases is being undertaken to consider whether
all open cases require social work allocation and indeed whether children’s
needs would be best met by case responsibility being held elsewhere. It is
probable that a number of cases should be moved and held within family
support teams.

3. Appendices

Appendix 1: Performance Analysis and Benchmarking for:

Page 7 of 8



Page 24

o Contact, Referrals & Assessments and Child Protection

Page 8 of 8



Page 25

‘sueaul ajduss are wodas sip un Bupprewduag oy pepinoid sabesane 8y} "YUOMSpPUBAA pue

1s3l04 weyyepm Hemyinos ‘weysima ‘yisequiet ‘uoibus) ‘weynd pue ypwsiswuweH ‘Aswioe ‘Yyomusalr) ‘uophol)) sasudwos
pue saonleg S,uaIpliy) 0} Alleayoads Buneras uoneuuojul olydeiBowsp-0190s uo paseq Pa1s10 Aq pauysp s1 dnoib sinoqybisn
[eonsnelg s AsbuueH ‘sinoqubieN [eonsiels s AsbuueH Jo/pue uopuo ‘pue|bu3 Joj papinosd s Bupsewyouaq ‘a|qe|ieA. 1oy

SUSIA PsN ul ualpiiyd  18edo

SUSIA uonoaj0.d PIYD 08edo

awn Juanbasgns Jo puooss B 10} UB|l LOIIBI0d PIYD 40 109[gns sy} Bunwosag ualpyo Jo abejusalad cog do
a10w Jo sresh g Bunse| sueid uoioA0Id PIYD  HIAH

ue|d dO e uo AsbuueH Jo yno parow uaippyd gzHdo

ueld dO & uo Asbuuer o1 Buinow uaippyd 1zydo

pouad ay} u ueld 4o e 0} 1o9igng Buisead uaIpIud €1y 4O

pousd ay) ul ueld 4o & 03 109igng Bulwodag uBIPIYD LI dO

ueid uonosioud pjiyo e 0} 1os8igns ualpiyD 8gedo

uonejoid PIIyD

sAep Buom GE UIYNM INO PaLLED B18M JBY) B8O [B100S S,USIPIIYO IO} SJUSWISSISSE 810D jo ebeyusaseq4 (gdo
[eL3J31 JO sAep Bupom Q| UIyUM INO PILLIED BJED [BI00S S,UBIP|IYD 0} SIUBLUSSISSE [elun jo abejuscisd  GGAH
[eA19)01 SNOIABID BY} JO SYUOW Z| UIyum Sleusyal-ay £gedo

Jusissasse |enul 0} uo Bulob ased [e100s s,uaIpIYd 0} S|ewaa. Jo abejuadled gaedo

dod 0000} 4od a1e0 [e190S S,UBIPIIYO O} S[ELBBI JO BJel Y] 20 L¥dO

8182 |I00S S,UBIP|IYD 0} S|eLaydl JO Jaquinu 3yl 0 LydO

PaAIa%8) SJ0BIU0D PIIYD O Jeaquinu 3yl posdo

SuUSWISSBSSY puUe SfeudjeY ‘s1oBju0)

sjueluon

“rz=r

UOI19810.d PIIUD PUE SjuBLUSSaSSY @ S[ELBJEH ‘10BIU0D - BupyBwyoueg pue sisAjeuy esuBuLIOpe



Page 26

—r g

ra N
{ €1/2102 AT T4 LL/0102 01/6002 -
0

“ 169'0 | zeL'o | 9ss's |ssevt| - - AeBupeH
_ 000'
| ) ) [X) N n
_. 0000 o 3 3 2 8 8 8 |I= (s1eeA 9 158])
| 00051 Ed g s S > S S |<| puen uue}buoq

& » o ey o @ @
m — L oe0'oz
. "SIOUSIA

__ yyeay pue syuswipedaq Alaympiu se yons sieuped ISYio 0} N0 Pajjos 8q [IM sdoysyiom asay| "9oejajul pue UoIIedIuUNnWWoD
_ ay1 aAcdwi 0} SNURUOD O} S|O0YOS YUm SAOYSHIOM play dABY Wes) Buiueelos ay| 10309s AIBJUN|OA By} pUB 4yD ybnosy)
__ UONUSAIBIUI JO $3IB3IBS SAIJELLIBYE O] SE INOJ0 SUOISSNISIP ‘Ploysail L g0S1 8ul Jo uoneoydde ayy ybnoaY | "SUIBIUOD JIBY)
_ SSNOSIP S1oa)8I UM IS} Buisealoul 0} PaINGUILOD Sey A|IGe]S SWes) ay L ‘Buiieys UOIJeULIOJUI PUB SP|OYSaIU} PUNOIE 3DIAPE
| |[1Isnqou pue ses|d Buipinoid ui s1eusyas yum sdiysuone;as Buons padojosp aAey HSYIN Ul sojelodiooul yoiym wes) Buiussiog syl
| . JUBWIWOY 89IAI8S

“Z1/1102 Ul %€ ¥E Yum paredwon [eusjas 0} papadoold €1/21.02 Ul
SIOBIUO0D JO 9%gZ "WINJNO SIeak Jse] 0} 8500 ainby pus seak syl yum ‘reah
1SE| SYIUOUI BWES 3} UBY) JOMO] A[JUBISISUOD 8] 0} SNUIU0D SI0BJU0D
JUBWILIOY) 8duUBWLIOLSd

eN qag uep 28Q AON O

POAIB22. S10BJUOD PlIYD JO Jequnu 8y} $05dO

o b

SJUBLLSSOSSY PUB S[eilajey ‘}10BUOD - SaljlWe pue uaip|iyd

“
|
| ~+ 0
| (1eeA snoire.d}
| L 0oL w26 | 605 | 855 | 6% | 219 | s8¢ Ry
z - & z

002
M 8 & 3 m 2 m 3 fea A SNOIAGId
m te = | & e = 2 =
“. 00v _ 105 | 205 | vor | eoy | ess | 809 AeBuueH
| _ J o
| g L » 3 M g |8 : m g |z (sywuow g 1se))
_ = = 2 A o - & a2 1= puaJ) uedssy
1
{ 002 2
“,f

-



Page 27

,..\_
!
|
|
|

—rrsow

£i2102 2102 L1/0102 01/6002 //
001 - ves | 255 | 8vs | 60 | o6y | 8184 pus/bug
- 002 818y SInoqybIeN
- WS | 209 | v69 | 49 | g2 |w

00¢ Ba 1800154818
o0F sse | oev | s | 29 - - 018y Aobuust
= " | svoz | eosz | 8s9z | vees | - - Jequny AeBupey

009 )
002 m m 2 m m m m w = (sueeA g isB)
z3 g S S € 3 m < | puesn uue buo

— 008 w N — o

1ey} S10EjU00 950y} A|UO JBY) DNSUB 0} SIOLIB4RI YUM SUOISSNOSIP BUIP|OY UO SNO0j 0} SNURUOD $S8904d Buiusaios pue Hey aylL

“Teak 8y} JOAO S[ELBJBI UI B3SBI09P PSNUILOD B} 10} SUNOODE SIY| “ELI39) 0} passaiboid ase Jswssasse A10)els e anbay

er-en

UBWWOY 821AIeS

'SIN0QyBIaU [BO)ISIESS N0 JO JEY) MOjBq A|IBOUOISIY S| 8181 [B8jeI S ABBULieH ‘Z1/| L0Z
UO UOHONPAJ 9581 U 8JE SeLajas SIeak siy) pue s1eak Jus0s) Jano AlIpes)s paseaiosp aAey Sjeusjoy

€1-694  €LUBr  21-98Q  2I-AON  21-10 juswwo) edueuLIOpad

~ —. (1]
S 82 ve 22 22 2 62 o181/ AsbuLrBl
il
3 91 1348 el S¢L 851 891 JequinN AeBupey| |
|
] =1 9 py & (o]
s [EE S NE| TR E R g emouse
[ =a > > > P S o | oot
(0
dod 000°0t 4od 8.0 [BIO0S S,UBIP|IYD O} S[B.LISJSI JO B18) 8y] eoipdo ‘

8.8 |BI00S S,UBJP|IYD 0} S[BLI8}S) JO JBqUINU BY|  0LpdO )



Page 28

—r s

‘_\ €4/2L0Z 2LL0Z  11/010Z  OL/600Z  60/8002  80/L002 J

| . e - | wse | wsL | %69 | - - |o pus/buz

[

! jrr N K778 B - - |e uopuo?

” ori - R - : R = |w SINOqUBIEN

m . : 1BSHBIS

| %28 | %66 | %¥8 | - - | wss AeBupeH

1 t %08 |

0N n N [ N Ny

” ||l 2181282l 8lz (s5wek 9 15| |
E S m Sl s | SIS 5| 5 %] puenuuebuoy |

_ %021 @ ~ = =) 3 |

.w ‘29q PINOYS JUSLUSSSSSE 1By} 1BUM pue palinbal s| Juswssasse Aoynels
| e Jayiaym ysiqelse Apres|o o} ajqe aq o} siabeuew Joj smoje abeys Buiuaaios ay} Je pauelqo uoneuuoul sy} jo Auenb ayl

_ JUsIWIO) 821A18S

| ‘sunoqybiau

| giemw €G34  eiuer 21080 2N 20 [EONSIIEIS INO JO JBUY SAOGE SUIBLWSI S)BJ 8Y} JEBK 1SE| UBY) JOMO) ISIUM

| — %0 ‘suonenon) A|YILoWw a8y} Yioows 0} JapIo ul

[ ... | uowsod ejep 03 Jeak Ajyjuow 8y} MOYS 0} Palelsal Ussq sey 101BOIpUI SIY).

__ JUSWWOY) 6oUBULIOH

| b %O0v d
_ -

| - %09 %28 | %96 | %26 | %96 | %6 | %96 _m ReBupen| ||
| 00 {
| = W M W M m M m 3 (syuow g 1sB)

_ el LR > > o ] o B pusn juedsy

| %0zt

m “21Ep 0} JEak By} U1 POAIRDBI SIRLBJR) JO JBQUWINU 8y} A PAPIAIP PBIRIdWOD SUBWSSBSSE [BRILI PBY OUM UBIPIIYD JO JAQUINU BY) UO PASEQ St LONEINJIED BYL _
ﬁ JUBLLSSSSE [B131Ul 0} UC BUIOD 818D [E1D0S S,UBJP|IYD O} SeLIejes Jo ebeuedled g9£d0o

i L/



Page 29

ar s

e | ooz zutioz 140102 ,J
| - - %0

| 2 - | %oz | woz | - | wez | wre |O pugibug _
1

| - _ sunoqyBieN]| ||
_ %01 %LL | %61 %L | %SL |V BoasRIS

" wee | @ | %ot |wn | - - - o e 166084 AoBuesy

| -

| %oz | USID | %SL | %L | %6l - - - g AeBupeH

! ) IX) ) )

| a o %52 c w. = Q =3 m = (s1B0K 9 158B))

| -] 2|8 2 =3 € S |2 | puen uueybuo

| 05 s | sl=2]13]8]38

‘sinoqybBiau [eansiess ano Aq pasuodal
{ feyr mogaq 1snf /auy u pue 1ab.e) Jno uey) JBRaq S Bl WINKNO Y| "adIAIBS 3y} 0l }oeq [eudjes BuiploA. ‘painuspl uasq
_ sey poddns ajeudoidde jey; pue suswssasse Bulixe uaym Jybu ployseiyy ayy Buieb si 921Aag ssuodsay 18114 8y} JO 10M 3y}
| 1Y} 31e0Ipul PINOM Jeak 1SB| By} JBAO BBl [BAIB)31 81 MO| AjBAlR|S1 8Y | “SSWaY) PUB spusi) Joj paskleue Aueinbal aie sjeusyel ay
| uswIWwo) 89118

_ EIBW  €1-G83  EIUBr 21080  21-MN 2190 “JeaA 8y} ul S|BUSaI GH0Z JO INO S[eLdeI-a)
- €LE PUB Y2IB Ul S[eu)al 9| JO INO S[eLajdl-a1 g¢ 0} ajejas abejusoie -

"g2H/110g W Ajleuoneu papiodal asoyy mojeq Apueoiiubis ing sinoqubiau
[eansess INo Aq pue JeaA se| pauodas asoy) mojaq Anybls ase sjpae -
JUBWIWO)) 8oUBULICHS Y

© | %ot | %91 | %9t | %9t | %9L | %9 |m 1668 Aebuuer
ueely | %02 | %Lk | %2t | %eL | %L | %SL ! AeBupeH
& W. M % m m M m 3 (sywow g isB))
I - s I & S L
| i "o @ ) =) o ] N puen jusdsy

{ leueyea snojeid eyy JO SyluowW gL UIYuM sjeuejel-oY £8£d0

W S Suecthlhe T i ¥ et = — el /



Page 30

€12102 211102 1L/0L02

g

- | oe2z | seze | wor | - - |y pugibuz] )
- %ez8 | w%es | 28 - - | V| sunoqybren eonspers
© | %08 | %0z | %02 | - . - s06ise) Aobuuer
P8y 9%0L | %L | %99 = = - AeBupeH
Bﬂ w. m m m m m m X (sseoA 9 158)
I3 | B S S € g S |2| pues uuey buoq
o = i s =) 3 &

u s1 yoddns ayeundosdde Buunsus pue Buiprenbajes o) Apoud sy S108)§a1 SIUL ‘¥ 1/E 102 10} 19U 8q ||IM %66 JO 1ebie) B JRY) ainsus
0} WIE 1M 301AI9S 8| "pasabbu) Buiag JusSSasSe ay) Jo SABP U3} UIYUM U9S 3q [|IM PlIyD & Jey) uonedadxa ayl yum 1obiey

MB3U B 13S {jiM £1.0g Ul JUSWSSassy a|BuIS 8y} JO uooNpoul aY ) "Jeak au) JoA0 pals|duiod ale sJuBLISSasSE [enu| SAep Jo Jaquinu
ay ul uswanosdwi e usaq sey a1sy| “uons(dwoa 1o} 196.e) sy Buincidwl UO SNDOJ O} SBNUIIUOD BDIAIBS Bsuodsay isil] ay |

‘uaJpjiyo Joj 3oe|d

€1-1en €1-094 ei-uer ci-%a CL-AON 21120

%06

%001

JUSWWO) 8J1AI8S

*JUBLUSSASSE 3Y} JO UOIBIND 8y} Uo SNd0oy 03 Buiniodas ul sbueyd e aq |Im
a9y} Juswssasse a)6uls Jo uonejusws|dw pue sabueyd sosunpy Buimoyoy
¥1/€1.02 Ul "E1L/2102 Ul %91 O} paseasdu sey sy} (% 1) snid shep |g ul
po1e|dwos sjuawssasse [enul Jo abejuaosad jsaybiy pig sy pey AsbulieH
18Ul PaMOYs Z /1102 Ul BIep Snsuad NID Jo sisAfeuy “shep Bupjiom

0} u pajojdwod 818m SJUBWISSASSY [eliu| 0081 JO N0 €921 €1/2102 Ul
‘pansiyoe Jou sem jab.ey 9,08 aul
pue syjuow Juasal ul Apenoiped siolesedwod mogsq [jiiS S| 80UBULIONSH

JUBWWO)) eOUBUWLIOHSd

%91 | %E | %1t | %er | %81 | %6 JeL/eloe

+1z [ozoL sttt ol | st 0__[sfep j0 vonnguisig
O | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | 10018 AsBuuer|
Ped | %0 | %ps | %EL | %8L | %68 | %0L AeBupey
= F9 ] s P-4
gl E |28 (8|58 |5 ownom
E e et e e R R e et =y

[eLB}e1 JO SABP BUPIOM Q| UIYHM INO PALLED 8.JeD [BI00S S,UBJP|IYD 10} SJUBLISSESSE [BNIUI JO 86BIUBDI0d  6SAH

/

-



er oy o

€1/2102  21/1102  L1/0102 0L/6002  60/8002 80/2002 J \
- . %0 - %L | %wsL | %esr | wes | wog |O pusibu3

MNM - (wer | - | wer | %os | wes vopuoq| ||

| L %0¢ < %28 | %E€8 | %6L | %18 | %Ll |V | swmogubiey monsyzs _
%0t

%05 © | %s8 | %or | %0z | %eo | %8 [ %vs |- 18618 Asbuuser _
| + %09

_ = - J o Ped | %0 | %99 | %e9 | %.ip . %8 KeBupen _

D |

— G v m m x C m. m m m W S m =< (sueeA g 158) _

b %06 @ = o = )
= R 3 g ° m S |2 uaJ} uuey buo| ||
— . ! ) T 3 = N = 3 3 =) puai 2] 1 _

*ssao0.d

S1Y3 ul d1eS ay) Loddns o} unu ase spodal sjeudoidde 3y jeyy Buunsus u) wes | soueULLOpPaY 3yl yum Ajaso|o bunjiom sy aoineg| ||
83U "0} pasaype ase asay Jeyy Bunjoes) pue sayep uons|dwos abie) Buines uo pasnoo) a1ow uans aq 0} pajoadxe 8q alojassy) pm
si1ebeuepy ‘uonexyEWAp JuBISSISSE [BJIU| OU yum shep G Jo s[eoSauN PasIAG. B 0} pes| Im uononposul JuswISsassy ajbulg sy
“jBuuew Ajpwin e Ul uass usaq aABY UAIP)IYD pue Pajejdwod sre syuswssasse Ayenb Buunsus uo pasnooj aney siebeueyy “reak

Page 31

|

|

1SE] 83U} 19A0 92INIBS BY) $S0.OE PeY aAryY sBUNBaW aouBULIOKS S} 1By} Joedwl By} S1o8yel Base siy) ul oueuLIOpad paroidu ay | __
wswwoy eonseg ||

'sAep G pue Gg usamiaq ul p319)dwoo alam .x.ﬂ_ k
‘shep g€ U1 pajaiduiod 9,0/ Sui O} UOIPPE Ul *€1/2L0Z Ut %] O) paonpay| |
Sey siyy'+sAep L9 ul pa3ejdwioo $8109 Jo % | yum Bupiues ysaubly yipy oyl ||
pey AsbuLiel ey pamoys snsuad NIO ZL/L10Z JO Siskieuy “skep Buppiom| |/
SE Ul PalIdWIoD 2JaM SIUBWSSBSSY 3100 $9E L JO INO LS6 £1/210Z Ul -| |

* 1obsey mojaq pue sinoqybisu [eonsiels ino Jo

€L-Ien €1-qoy €1-uer ci-08Q CL-AON cL-10

. . %0 Jeu} mojaq si sjeasauw ul palaldwod spusWISSaISSe 8100 Uo aoueuuopad-| |
o “Yore U pue JeaA ise) uo panosdu sey 8oueuLOpay- [
] s JUeWIWIO) eduBULIoHe |

| %EL_| %e | %8 | %9 [ %IS | %8 | %9 [w%b|el/eioz
_ %08 +19 | 09-16 | 0S-L¥ | Ob-GE | GE-OF | 0t-L¢ | O2-Lk [01>]sAep jo uonnamisig {
%0¥ |
) ws | @ | %s8 | %se | %se | wse | %o | wse [ st dotuer| |
- %% ) pad | 96vs | %09 | w6 | %es | %eos | wes AeBupey| ||
= %0L - z = T = |
%we | & W 2 & 3 m 2 m B (Supow g ysmpf )
— = = = " lwe|Fa| 8 |a|a (x| 5|8 3] puenwesey ._

SAep BUDLIOM GE UIYUM INO PBLIED BIM JBY) BJBD (81008 §,UBp|IYo 10} SjUBWSSESSE 0109 J0 BbBIUSDIeY 09dO %) |



Page 32



Page 33

—ry

*(op) sinoqybiau

[EONISIIE}S UNO JO 1By} O} J3SO[O PUE (61} 21L/L1LOZ Ul djed s AsbuueH

moleq ajes ay) sbuuq y abesane puebul ayy uey) 18ybiy surewal aje.

SY} IS|IUM 'S|9A3] |1/010Z UO UONONPal %L B ‘2L0g [udy 8uls usaq sey
¥ 1samo| sy} s axes 8y 18w buieq ueld 4o e uo ualp|iyd OOE LBy} SS3| JO
wie 8y} Ul paynsal sey Jeak ayl JO SylUOW om] JSe| 8y} Ui |je} Jueoyiubis v

uono8loid PiIYD - saljie pue usipiiyo

-



Page 34

er T ur

— — T T T e T T e e e e
\\ (Y404 A4 11/0102 01/6002 — — ~ 1/».

- 0 A
| J or | ev | 2» | & | 88 |V 1oRSARIS
| E 00001
_ M = 8y 6v 9 09 - sod ejay AeBupmy
| | N BGUINN
B | og ® 62z | 92z | wz | a1z | ssu OB XIS
- L
A ok usass) | szz | v8z | oze | vee | 61 | zez Jequiny AeBuyen
- — L 0g
| nN N n N [ N
*. e =25 = 2 2 8 g S |= (simek g 158)
L g3 | B = g < g S 2| pusn uueybuon
A T SO e eDee il 2 @ ) = =) ] 8

*SYIUOW g I1SB| 9y} JBAC SSEBI09P BU} SB PaxJewW Se aq O} Ajaxijun si INQ SNUIUOD ||IM JUSIX

Ue 0} puE paulelsSns aq |Im sueid 40 U0 UJPJIYD JO SISGUINU Ul UONONP3I U} Jey) pabesiAua S| )| “PapIOAe 8q 01 Poliad MaIAal
yows ¢ 1841 8y Buunp yup Joj pue Apjainb asow passeiboid aq 0} sueld 42 J0) smojje siyL. Juiod Jey) wouy Ayjigisuodsal esed
a¥e} pue SOOI il papusye aAey S pue § 1s| judy woiq ‘auop aAey asimusyio Aew Asyy uey) Jebuo) soeld ui Buiurews. sueid
dD ui ynsal Im sty -spew Buiaq ueid 4o Buimol|o) YuUp Ul SYNSaI pue BAII08YS Jou SI WsisAsulod Jsjsuel) SIU) Fey) ssyiuspl
Afea)o upny — ajgeUeA SEeMm Jajsuel) Sy} Jo Buiwn syl - DdD| Buimoj|o) S pue S 01 L4 WoJj pasajsuel) A||eouo)siy saey sase)
‘syjuow

_ SAJOM] 1XBU BY} JBAO0 UD3S 3 ||IM SIY} PaA3IRg SI Y — Ueld B U0 UJpjiyd JO S1Isquunu Ul UOIONPaI B 89S OS|e ||IM J0)oR) PIUYL Y
‘ue|d 40 © U0 USJPJIYD JO SIBGUINU Ul {8} Y} 0} PAINQLILIOD SABY SI0)0B}) Z 3S3U] Jey} PooIsIapun Si }| '0319 yup a1

_ Buiwses| pue sesed Buissaiboid Jopisuoo 01 sueld 4D Papualxs Yum Saseo ||e Buimsinal ase sisupred Juawdolaasp 8onoeld pasiel
sanssi 9on9eid 8Y) SSaIppe 0} JOPIO Ul UOHELLIOJUI BPNE SIY} Palapisucd AjaAnoe sey wee) Juswebeuew poddng pue Buipsenbajes
'SV D PUe SI93IOM [B100S S puB G J0j uonoalp ajqissod pue Buiwies) spinoid payiiuapl ssway| ‘suejd 4O JO SSaUaAioayd

pue Sp|oYysaly} 40 SaNSSI SalUapP! upne siy| ~ paje|dwod uaaq sey poddng pue Buipsenbsjes uiyum play saseo {0 Jo upne uy ||
‘uejd 4o e 10} pasu _

ay1 pioae ‘papiroad i ‘Aews yeyy disy Apea/poddns Jo UOHBISPISUOD-31 MO|IE ||IM PUB JUD]SISUOD 18 99UaJ3JU0D 0} 9se9 & Bupie} 1o}
SP|OYSsaly} SaINsua SIY | ‘SIOH 10 SjoHQ asuodsay 1sii4 AG pemainal ale D] 01 9} 0} Si ueld 3IOM [BID0S 8J9Ym SBSBD MaU ||y
‘pasapisuod

aie Sp|OYSaY} pu. SI0108B) JUBASIR aY} |[B Jey) palinbai y ybiy ase AsbuuieH ul sue|d g0 uo uaJp|Iyd JO SISGUINU BY) USAID)

“yiom pajabie) ajqeus pue sjeuolssajold Jsbuowe ssauaseme asiel 0} pasN JO WNNURUOD 8Y} JO ¥ |9A9)

uiuiyum padojanap usaq aney s10)duosap pajieisp aJo0p "AJ Pue uoieonps swoy ‘aouepusaiie Jood Jo joeduwi ‘sjooyos [e1osdg
AabuueH |je u sBunssy Areundiosiq MNA 10 som Buiuiwexs Buipnioul ualpjiyd Pajgesip 40} aonoeld SA1108)S JORUOW O} SBNUUOD
g0S1 2y} jo dnoibgns mainay pue Ao1j0d uaip|iy) pajgesiq Buipienbajeg sy JBaA ayl J8A0 SUB|d UO1198)0id PliyD UO UaIpjIyd
PaIgesIp JO JBGWINU 8y} Ul (€102 YOIe Ul SAY O} PBONPaJ UIPIIYD g 1) UOONPSL %8G B USaq SeY a1l | wea| s,usipiiy) pajgesia
juawIWo)) 891AI8S




Page 35

“rz ore

= asvasouy
& o € i A | 9N yBeN j82asm18
2 - 8v2- | ove- | 92e- | veL- | €81~ | O | Buses) amoqusien s
o Buwoseq)
0z | oke | 192 | 0z2 | s6L |V e
b2 L/OL 6- 9¢- (4 o - - |- esvanw son Aebuymy
Auo £€9¢e- | €1e- | soe- < = = (Bujsead) AeBupey
RO vee |z | vee | - . . (Bujwooeq) AeBuyey
5 — - +— .
TR EY R R
I W e R 3 4 € S |<| puen uuey buon
 ® o = 5 8 | & | | s

"SUILIOW Z }sB| 8} JOAO 8SEBI09P By} SB paYew Se aq 0}

Al@xijun s1Inq anUNUOD |IM Jus)Xa UE 0} PUE paueisns aq ||im suejd 4O U0 UBIP|IYD 4O SIBGUINU Ul UONINPSI auy1 1ey) pabesiaua s1 )
‘ued e Buipsau Jabuo| ou uapyyo 0} Buipes) sueid Buisssiboid uo SNJ0} 8 Os[e pue DdD| 03 usye} Buiaq seses o) usaib

Aunruos ay) s1oepss siy) ueid e 03 199[qns apew uey) ueld 4o B o usye) usJpliyo asow Apuedyubis uses urebe sey yuow syl

‘ueld e 0} yoslgns

USIpIud 6 JO 8SEBI08P 13U B SEM 8ley) Jeak ay) ul ||lesen) “Arenuga4 aouis

ue|d B U0 UaJP|IYd i JO UonoNpas B ‘ue|d e 0} 103lgns awessq gy Ajuo

i } _ Pue yose u uejd uonosoud plyd e o} Josfqns Buleq paseas usipiyo 09

€ L L I = b4 o sc- 6 c- ci &- == &Q&M&n\g\“
Auo 09- $e- 61- 18- St 1e- (Buiseed) AeBupey

BlEg | 94 6 82 se IS 82 {Bunwooeq) AeBuyeH

m w. ﬂ ) w m m w .m = (suow g ise))

a pA 3 s & = < puei) Jusdey




Page 36

—r =

eseasouj

= G | i e S S S s JoN AoBuusy
2 21110 >_c0 le ce- - < 3 - (ino Bujrow) AeBupey
ered Se L = = = - {u) Bujaow) AeBupeH
s [8|8|BlE|E|z (180K 0 358)
.M 3| 5 2 g g S 12| puen uuey buon
® o 2 =3 & g )

‘udy ul sabueyd Weusq Jo

j1oedwi ay) BuIMO||0) UB3S aq |iM Sabueyd 1By} pajoipaid st )f ‘Aujigepioye pue Ayjigejiese Buisnoy Aq uo psjoeduul i 101EDIPUL SIYL
*AabulreH

JO INO PAAOW 3ABY AjiUie) B USYM JsuueL Ajpui B Ul S3SED BULLISJSUEI} JE SAIDS)S SI0W MOU BJe oM 1By} pajou osfe st i ‘sI9jsuel}
yons Buipsebai Jesjo aJe sainpadso.d uopuo’ ued ‘g pue § SOH 3y AQ paIapisuod ase AabuueH 0} Ul pauajsuel} SaSed ||V ‘ue|d 49
© yum AabBuLreH Jo 1o pue ui Buinow uaIpjiyd JO DUE[E] USAS Jesu & u2as sey Jeak ISe| ‘pusi] 3y} PeXONg SABY SYIUOW {7 1Se| Yl

-uoiusod paouereq Ajrey e uo feaA ay) buipus no Burusysues) Joquinu
ayy U ey e AQ payubew si siyy ‘ul Buluajsuel) siBqUINU 3y} Jo Buygnop
ueY) SJ0W B SMOYS UotiSod Jeakh Jo pus 8y} pual} Juadal syl audsaq

_ e | e | = || | 2 |& s s
: w 16N Aebuusr
S T e D el R B ) ) I (ano Bujrow) AeBuueH

©
Pt
©
(@]
-
o
]
o
-
<

(u) Bujrow) AeBupey

< @' M Y
Lo o R W e e 4 S smieichen
E4 m ﬂ o % _.n- = = ~< pus.y Juedsy

e



Page 37

—r

- | %9s | %09 | we's | %e's | wes (o puEIbuz
2 %Le | - - | %sL | %o | @ uopuoy
o L . . : - . SRoqYBIeN
& e - | %6 [ %98 | %5z | %ze | wes (v oo
vV = 4 @ | %oz | %09 | %se | %os [ %os [ %os [ 10681 Aoburser|
ueaso | %02 | %o | ues [weoL | %ev | %o AeBuyey
N [¥) =1
= w_ 8|1 2|8 g 8 3 (sseeA g 3u))
E 4 sl 8 | 8 3 pua.) uue} buoq

A 'SawodIno parosdu uo Guisnooy

pue s Buibeuew jo Aem 1s8q ay) sjuasaidal nq "yYup eyevipul Jou seop Bujuueid 4o jo pousd PepuUlXd UEe B1aym ‘UBIP|IYD

Japjo yum Apenonred - sasen jo saquinu jlews e sre 818yl ‘papusixa aq pinoys ueld 4O sy} SISeD BWOS Ul Jey) pajou aq pinoys )
‘Paysiigelse mou s|

Sthuow g| san0 auoh sAey yoiym sased asiunnuos Ajaunnos oy wasAs v ‘Buiuued 4o Papusixe pasu o} Wybnoy) uaipiyo o} uonejas
Ul sswayy 3jqissod Apuapi 0} Inq sases [enpiApul Y1oq Jo Buipuesispun asow ureb oy Japio ul SNO0J SPBaU UoIUSKE SIY) JIBASMOH
'VdO 9yl pue g pue g ul siebeuew J0juss Aq PaiapISUOD Ajpunnos ase sieak ¢ uey) 1abuo) Bunse sueid 4o yum sases lenpiAipu

(moreg cog dQ 99s) ‘suonensibas-as 104 a1nby (ybiy) Jood

e Aq paure|dxe aq Aew J01ea1pul sy} 10} aunby (moj) poob e - (suonensibal
-81) (S9 IN) S9€dO apisbuole Je pax 00| 8q pinoys Jojedipur siyy
"sanoqyBisu feansiels ano pue uopuo ueyy Jamoy Apybys st siy).

"Jobe)} Lo ‘a10w o sseak g passe) yey) sued uonosioud pliyo pey usippyd
6SE JO 1IN0 6 10 %, abejuadied somo| e Aq padAy S1 9oueuLIopad poon)

. %BOL | %0°L | %02 | %02 | %02 | %02 | o 18068 Aebuuey
— l- == uealy) | %Lt | %6'S - WP LL | %LLL | %EEL AeBupuey
- £ g & ;
T O L B O ey
3 ] @ & IS ~ ~

e



Page 38

ar g

= |weer [%eet [wrer [ween |%ee [ O pus/buz
- lwrn| - - |%s fweer uopuo7
= %z [wear [wees |%ia | woes |V pmoqubien wonsusis
O | %00t | %001 | %00k [ %001 | %008 | %00 | j0bue AobuLer
- == ped | %8y | %S0L| %06 | - - - AeBupey
—— .
7 TIEEE RN AR AR g |z (s1204 9 150)
2 o I3 & 2 g < S |2| puen uuey buon
@ =] o = =} 3 2 il (RS N

-gpelw sy uonesijdde UNoo awi Je Jou e Ing ued uo ueaq aney oym sbuIPss20.d UNOD OJUI UBYE] UBIPIIYD JO

siaquinu pue suoneosiidde LUNod a1 Blep JAPISU0d O} jeba| pue oy ‘a1 ‘sybnoiog seyio ueyy (1noo *6-9) seno sayio Buisn ssaiboid
INQ 85USISJUCD O} UINIB O} JOU UDISIOBP B aYew O} 1950inb s1 AsBuLie Jaylaym Jesjoun st ) “poolsispun 8q o} Spasu jey) ease ue
s1 sy “jou ase g sueld 4O 03 193igns aq pue 9dIl 01 %9eq 1ybnouq aq pInoys ey} sesed aie 3idul jeyl si1sebbns ainby mo| a8yl

‘sebueyo pasinbai ay) inoge
Buiiq 0} A|aA0aya BuluaaIsiul JOU B1B BJejaMm S,P|IYD 3} 40} 9|qisuodsai
sjeuoissajoid ay ey} 1sebbns Aew [aA9) ybiy e ‘Ajas1eAuo) "pasu ul ase
OUM UB|d UORDBI0Id PIIYD € O} UBIP|Iyd awos Bunywigns jou st Auoyine
[e20] B Jeyl ueaw Aew [9A8] mo| fuan v "sainby sreah snoiaaid pue
[UOHEN ‘NS ‘UOpUOT YuMm uosuedwod Aq Mo St €1/210C 40} %8'F UL

%01 | %0L | %0t | %01 | %0 | %0l | = 1068 Aebuuet
%52k | %00 | %9€ | %00 | %SE | %L 0L KeBuueH
) > ] by o s[5 puen juedsy




Page 39

I

e e —— s

puaJy uwuey buon

"SSllIure) G WOy UBIPIIYD 9 - %6 S1 8Bejusasad feak o pus sy ‘asEd By} JO
SSOUBISWNOUID 8y} 0} sjeudoidde Sem yolum S[EOS Wi} B O} PBUBAUOD SBM MBIAS) YOED JBU) PUSIIGEISS SEM }i PUE PaxoaLo aiom
SOl SSED 3L} PAUNUBP! SEM SIL) UBUM  “SUIUOW 981y} e Jou pue (deb Yiuow g) MaiAal Juanbasgns B SE Ps|NPaYds SeM MaINa)

1S4l 8y} 90USI9JU0I [ElUI BY} JBYE ‘SYBN010Q JYI0 WO Ul POLIBJSURL) PBY YOIYM SSED [[B 210M S[BOSLUI] JO JNO SMOIASS ay)

"EL/ZL0Z U1 S[BOSSLI Ul BI9M SMBINSI OZZ JO
1IN0 G1.Z "Jeak 8y JO JOPUIBLLB AU} SO} SLUIY JO INO SE PBJUNOD S| MBIASS B1E|
€ Sy Py & Se $3ses109p Amo|s aoueuuoped Ajyjuow ayy pajoadxe sy

ar



Page 40

—r s

(| %se | %s6 | - = E S P Jo8u8 ) Aebuuer
Jaquiy | %v6 | %S6 | %26 - = S KeBuypeH
g 22|88 |8 g |x= (10K 9 158)
W ] BRI e P |3 2| pusn uue) 6uo

w» N - o

‘g pue g ul siebeuew aonieg AQ paioyuow
2q OS[e [|IM SWea} Jayl0 UIyiM play Sased Jey) paaibe sem ) “Bulpiodal pue yJom [e100S yjoq Jo Ayjenb ayj pue sysiA Jo dn Buium
Al 9y} ‘SESIA JO 9OUBLIND0 Y1Og %03Yd 0} sisbeuew oy sdeid Ul mou SWBYSAS YUM Wes) S pue S 8y} UiyliM HIOM JO SNJ0}

ay s1 Jojeoipul aoueuLiopad siy} "Ajyluow Jo winuwiuiw KIBA € 1B usas aq pinoys sueld 0} 103{gNns uaIp|iYo Jfe 1By} SI uoneoadxa ay L

‘pua Yluow ay} Jaye SAep g 10 g ulyum pa1s|dwod assm Bulpueisino

susiA Jo uoiuodoud abie] v “104 p8juNodoe Usaq Jou pey sAepljoy yueq auy
asaym pouad 19)se3 3y} JoAo sysia Buiuueld pue Buipiosas yruow repusied
01 anp Ajjenued syjuow uj awi} 1sil 8y} oy 196.1e) mojaq ||9) oueuLIOUad

(] %56 | %S6 | %S6 | %S6 | %G6 | %S6 | 188081 A8buLEH
1Bquy | %ve | %26 | %86 | %96 | %16 | %E6 AeBupely
= FS
= SN b R L e e
A | - BN R R [ s S pusi} edey




Page 41

er e

1Ua031 Ul [9A9) S1Ul BAOQE [|9M A[JUBISISUOD US3] SeY ) PUe 9 Lg SEM
ZH/110g u doueuLOuad ‘Jabie) mojag uonisod ajep o} Jeak ayy ybnoyyy -
sabejusasad g ybiy ay) ul urebe souBULIOMad -

Jobie; Aobuusry




Page 42



N Page 43 Agenda Item 8

=

Haringey
Children's Safeguarding ltem
Report for: Policy and Practice )
. Number:
Committee
Title: Adoption Performance Update
Report
Authorised by:
Lead Officer: Lesley Kettles
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:
All

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report is submitted to the Children's Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Committee for information. The Committee and other Council Committees are
not required to make formal decisions based on this report.

1.2 This report is to inform members of the progress made in the performance of
the Adoption Service in placing children for adoption and special guardianship
since the publication of the Adoption Scorecard and the Adoption Diagnostic
Review in Summer 2012.

2. Cabinet Member introduction
2.1

3. Recommendations
3.1 It is recommended that elected members consider the report and support the
ongoing actions described.

4. Other options considered
N/A

Page 1 of §



Page 44

X

=

Haringey

5. Background information
5.1 The report is a review of the performance of the Adoption Service in the
financial year 2012/13; and a report of performance in this financial year to date.

6. Performance Review 2012/13

6.1 Total Number of Children in Adoption Process Planning.
The table below identifies the total number of children who are in the adoption
planning process:

Total number of childrenin Adoption process/ planning

‘ 87 | ‘ 90 | ‘ Total Children

100 . _ . . .

a0

80 B Awaiting approval

70

60 M Awaiting placement
50

40 M Placed

0 ace

20

10 M Adopted (Year to date)

May 2013

6.1.128 children have been placed for adoption which compares favourably with 22
children placed in 2010/11 and 15 placed in 2011/12. This is a significant
increase in activity outcomes.

6.1.2 The average number of days from care to placement for adoption is 737 days
which includes children who had been in the system for some considerable
time with complex needs and backgrounds.

6.1.3 The average number of days from court permission to place and placed for
adoption for this cohort of children is 313 days.

6.1.4 A further 6 children have been placed to date.

6.1.5The average number of days from care to placed for adoption in this financial
year is 299 days, which is a significant decrease from the previous financial
year. One child was placed at 1,246 days and this child is on the foetal alcohol

Page 2 of §



Page 45

X

=

Haringey

spectrum, which lead to difficulties in identifying a family who could meet her
needs.

6.1.6 The average number of days from court permission to place and placed for
adoption for this cohort of children is 160 days, which is again a significant
reduction.

6.1.7 Placements have been identified for a further 15 children and they are
expected to be placed in the next quarter.

6.1.8 The increased focus on permanency for children, supported by the enhanced
permanency tracking meetings and the new style Linking Meetings, is
successful in leading to higher volumes of children placed and more child
centred timescales. Dedicated family finding social workers have also lead to
improved performance.

6.2 Adoption Orders.

6.2.1 There was a target of 15 adoption orders in 2012/13. 14 orders were
achieved in total.

6.2.2 A comparison between the in year performance and the 2009-2012
performance indicates improvement, particularly for children who were
placed for adoption with foster carers.

6.2.3 The target for adoption orders for 2013/14 is 30 orders. 7 adoption orders
have been achieved to date. The average numbers of days from care to
placed for adoption for this cohort of children is 322 days. 1 child was
placed a 1,392 days and the reason for this was that the child had a
previous adoption placement which disrupted. 1 other child was placed at
over 3,000 days and this is a child who has significant disabilities and
who was placed in a long term fostering placement with carers who went
on to adopt him.

6.2.4 There is scrutiny of this part of the process via the Permanency Tracking
meetings and the Deputy Head of Service, Adoption ensures that the
independent reviewing officers discuss adoption applications at statutory
reviews with the purpose of driving adoptions forward.

6.2.5 A further 12 Adoption orders are expected in the next few months.

6.3 Special Guardianship Orders.
6.3.1 31 special guardianship orders were achieved in 2012/13.
6.3.2 This compares with 13 for the previous financial year.
6.3.3 7 special guardianship orders have been achieved to date in this financial
year.

6.4 Prospective Adopters.
6.4.1 26 prospective adopters were approved in 2012/13. This compares with 9
in 2011/12 and 5 in 2010/11, but was less than our target of 30.
6.4.2 4 preparation groups were delivered with an average of 10 sets of
prospective adopters attendance at each group.

Page 3 of §



X

=

Haringey

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

Page 46

One third of the adopters were approved in under 6 months and the
remainder in 8 months. Timescales for approval have improved by having
3 dedicated assessing social workers.

The two stage adopter approval process comes into force on 1% July. We
have prepared for this by identifying a social worker to undertake the
initial processes which involve screening, initial visit, information
meetings, taking up of checks and references and basic preparation. The
plan is to develop a North London Consortium recruitment team to more
effectively manage these processes and to meet the two month
timescale. Stage two of the process is preparation and assessment which
has 4 months as a timescale. These timescales constitute part of the
targets contained in assessing social workers work plans and are subject
to management scrutiny.

This is further supported by the full implementation of the workflow
processes which enable management reports to be run from Framework—
i.

7. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications.

8. Head of Legal Services and legal implications.

9. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments.

10.Head OF Procurement Comments.

11. Policy Implication.
The borough has a permanency policy which supports this work.

12.Head of Legal Services and legal implications

13.Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

14.Head of Procurement Comments

15.Policy Implication

16.Use of Appendices

Page 4 of §



Page 47

X

=

Haringey

17.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page S of §



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43 Agenda ltem 9

X

=

Haringey

Children's Safeguarding ltem
Report for: Policy and Practice )

. Number:

Committee
Title: Update on the MOSAIC programme
Report .
Authorised by: Marion Wheeler
Lead Officer: Sarah Barter / Jo Sobhee
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. MOSAIC Programme Implementation:

1.1.MOSAIC is a major redevelopment of FWi, Haringey’s social care recording
system, which is being designed and developed in partnership with the supplier
and 14 other early adopter authorities:

1 Blackpool 6 Ealing 11 | Oxfordshire
2 Brent 7 East 12 | Scottish Borders
Lothian
3 Camden 8 Haringey 13 | Tower Hamlets
4 Cornwall 9 Harrow 14 | Wandsworth
5 Dumfries & 10 Midlothian 15 | Worcestershire
Galloway

1.2.Mosaic’s design is user-focussed with an emphasis on improving usability and
efficiency, reducing social work recording times, improving staff experience of the
system and providing long term improvements in data quality, practice and
performance.

1.3.The aim of the development is not only to enhance existing functionality but also to
introduce many new features including group based recording and group

Page 1 of 2



Page 50

X

.

summaries which will meet the critical need to maintain a systemic and family
narrative (Munro).

1.4.Group based recording will enable workers to record common information against
all members of the family (or group) without having to duplicate the recording effort
on each individual record. This will result in huge time saving efficiencies as
families in Haringey often consist of large sibling groups. The functionality will also
promote better data quality and improved consistency as there will be less scope
for vital information to be missed from any of the case records in the group.

1.5. The Mosaic project is using Agile methodology so functionality will be available for
Live implementation as it is completed with the result that staff will benefit from
deliverables during the life cycle of the project. Tranches of deliverables will be
iteratively implemented with the first tranche of new and improved functionality
scheduled for an autumn 2013 implementation. This will include:

e Introduction of form-based workflow, improving user experience and reducing the effort
of recording by making work processes more familiar and intuitive

e A replacement “Work View”, providing a single flexible view of all work assigned to the
worker facilitating better prioritisation and case management

e Quick Start menus and hyperlinks throughout the system enabling workers to begin
work immediately without having to spend time navigating through several screens

e A new search engine enabling more efficient searching, reducing time and effort as
well as avoiding errors and the creation of duplicate records

e Improvements to system security enabling better governance of roles and records

e Full data migration from FWi into Mosaic enabling workers to continue to work easily
with no loss of data on the first day of Go Live

1.6.0nce the first implementation has bedded down and staff are confident with the
new way of working, family based recording functionality will be introduced,
currently scheduled for early next year.

1.7.The FWi e-learning training tool ‘Me Learning’ is also being redesigned to support
staff with the changes to tools and processes brought about by Mosaic and will be
available to all staff ahead of the first implementation.

1.8.In the meantime, representation at Project Boards and design workshops is
continuing and Haringey is now a well established influential development partner
and recognised as one of the key drivers of the project. This has led to Haringey
project team presentations to the Project Board and supplier events as well as the
team hosting meetings with other local authorities who are interested in learning
from Haringey’s experiences and Mosaic implementation plans.

Page 2 of 2



Page 51 Agenda ltem 10

X

=

Haringey
Children’s Safeguarding ltem
Report for: Policy and Practice Number:
Committee )
Title: Local Authority Designated Officer Annual Report 2012/13
Report . . .
Authorised by: Marion Wheeler — Assistant Director
Lead Officer: Rachel Oakley, Head _of Service, Safeguarding, Quality
Assurance and Practice Development

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1.Haringey Council, in conjunction with Haringey Safeguarding Children’s Board
(HSCB), has a duty to ensure that all allegations of abuse or maltreatment of children
by a professional, staff member, foster carer, or volunteer be considered and treated
in accordance with national guidance.

1.2.Attached [appendix A] is the Local Authority Designated Officer's (LADO) annual
report of allegations made against adults who work with children. The report provides
profiling analysis of allegations made in the Borough, comparative data and an
update of the interventions and development work completed during 2012/13.

2. Cabinet Member introduction

3. Recommendations

3.1.Members to note the development work completed and the next stage of work which
is to initiate discussions with partner agencies; Health and Police, to ensure they are
compliant with Working Together 2013. See attached report [appendix A].

4. Other options considered

Page 1 of 15



Page 52

X

=

Haringey

5. Background information
5.1.Working Together to Safeguard Children was significantly revised and republished in
2013, effective from the 15™ April 2013; however, there were no changes to the
substance of this part of the guidance or the role of the LADO. Further information on
the role of the LADO as outlined by Working Together is attached [appendix B].
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications
6.1.The cost of the LADO service is contained within the Children and Families base
budget. There are no other particular financial consequences associated with this
report.
7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications
7.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendation of the report.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
8.1.The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) has management oversight of all
individual cases where allegations are made against people who work with children.
All employers of child care staff have access to services provided by the LADO,
allegations and the treatment of allegations are monitored to ensure the thresholds
are applied evenly and the outcomes are proportionate.
9. Head of Procurement Comments
10. Policy Implication
10.1. Whilst there have been recent revisions to Working Together to Safeguard Children
[see above 5. Background information] there are no policy implications in relation to
allegations made against adults working with children.
11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Local Authority Designated Officer’'s (LADO) annual report of allegations made
against adults who work with children [appendix A].

11.2 Additional information on the role of the LADO as outlined in Working Together to
Safeguard Children guidance [appendix B].

11.3 LADO Action Plan 2013/14

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page 2 of 15



Page 53

X

=

Haringey

Appendix A

Allegations against adults who work
with children

Local Authority Designated Officer Annual
Report
April 2012 — March 2013

Page 3 of 15



Page 54

X

=

Haringey

CONTENTS

1 Introduction

2 Development
2.1 Key development work undertaken in 2012/13
2.2 Development work to be completed in 2013/14

3 Referrals made against adults working with children
3.1 LADO consultations
3.2 Referrals that met threshold
3.3 Referring agencies
3.4 Categories of abuse

4 Profile of adults that allegations have been made against
4.1 Gender
4.2 Other equalities indicators
4.3 Employment sector

5 Comparative data
6 Case resolution timescales
7 Substantiation of Referrals

Page 4 of 15



Page 55

X

=

Haringey

1. Introduction

1.1 Haringey Council, in conjunction with Haringey Safeguarding Children’s Board
(HSCB), has a duty to ensure that all allegations of abuse or maltreatment of children
by those working with children e.g. staff member, foster carer, or volunteer be
considered and treated in accordance with national guidance.

1.2 The duty of statutory agencies who work with children to work together as separate,
but involved, agencies to safeguard children and address allegations made against
staff is detailed in key legislation pertaining to the sector.

1.3 In compliance with Working Together to Safeguard Children (2010), Haringey has a
Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) who is involved in the management and
has oversight of individual cases where allegations are made against people who
work with children.

1.4 In Haringey, the operational role of the LADO sits in Children and Families Service,
within the Children and Young People’s Service. A designated Child Protection
Advisor undertakes the role with oversight by the Head of Service, Safeguarding,
Quality Assurance and Practice Development. Further information on the role of the
LADO is attached [appendix B].

2. Development
2.1 Key development work completed in 2012/13"

« Review of the thresholds for progressing referrals to strategy meeting stage — to
ensure referrals receive the appropriate level of response.

« New workflow designed resulting in a process that is explicit to all
e The documentation and guidance has been reviewed and updated

« Development of confidential electronic recording system (on framework-i) for
LADO referrals, improving recording and reporting capability significantly, resulting
in following improvements operational from 1 April 2013:

o service able to record and report in detail on all consultations and allegations
which meet threshold

) Working Together to Safeguard Children was significantly revised and republished in 2013, effective from
the 15™ April 2013; however, there were no changes to the substance of this are part of the guidance.

" Reported activity is limited to quarter 3 and 4. Appointment of LADO and transfer of oversight of work to

Head of Service for Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Practice Development, made at the end of
September 2012.

Page S of 15



Page 56

X

7

Haringey

o capture and reporting of all performance related data such as nature of referral,
referring agency, setting of employment

o capture and reporting of diversity data of alleged perpetrator(s) and alleged
victim(s)

3.1

o ability to compare and contrast data with allegations made within perpetrators own
families or outside work

o reporting of outcomes

o reporting of length of time to resolve cases

Development of system for recording and monitoring consultations.

The LADO attends forums for Designated Teachers of primary and secondary
schools and Children Centre meetings.

LSCB training for Designated, Lead and Named Professionals for Child Protection

o Training content fully developed

o Training courses scheduled for May, July, November and February
2014

0 Course covers allegations against professionals and has the objective

of ensuring that the Designated, Lead and Names professional with the Haringey
Partnership are clear and confident in performing their children protection duties,
including dealing with allegations

The LADO action plan was updated in line with the last OFSTED
recommendations and implemented.

Defined and communicated clear respective responsibilities of the referrer, HR
and the LADO. This includes defining the criteria and boundaries in the process
for a range of outcomes e.g. cases that meet the criteria for suspension.

Referrals made against adults working with children
LADO consultations

Since September 2012, referrers have consulted with the LADO on average twice
per week. The LADO provides advice and guidance during consultation with a
referrer. The possible outcomes of the consultation are broadly captured under three
headings:

. the allegation meets the threshold (section 47)
. local management to address (e.g. through staff training)
. local management to take further action (e.g. disciplinary procedure, in

consultation with HR).

The majority of consultations came via OFSTED following anonymous contact from
concerned members of the public.

Page 6 of 15



Page 57

X

//r

Haringey

Concerns ranged from teachers and nursery worker behaviour (such as name-
calling) to accidental injuries received by children where the parent felt inappropriate
action was taken. Whilst the behaviour may have been inappropriate, it is an issue
for management to address via staff training and development or at the more serious
level the capability or disciplinary process.

3.2 Referrals that met threshold

During the year 2012/13, there were 46 referrals to the LADO that met the threshold
for involvement. This figure is broadly in line with our neighbouring boroughs;
Islington receives on average 44 referrals that meet threshold every year and
Camden an average of 50.

The following charts illustrate the breakdown of referrals by referring agency and by
categories of abuse (3.3 and 3.4):

3.3 Referring Agencies
The large majority of contacts with the LADO came directly from the educational

setting itself and account for 35% of referrals in total. The remaining educational
referrals came via CYPS staff or the police after parents had approached them.

Referring Agency
Faith Group
5% ~

Early Years

7%

Transport
5%

3.4 Categories of abuse
The largest category of allegations by type was physical abuse this primarily

occurred in educational settings and accounted for 52% of allegations that met
threshold and 59% of all allegations received.

Page 7 of 15



4,

Page 58

X

//r

Haringey

Categories of Abuse

Emotional

_—  pbuse

AT

Sexual Abuse

15% '

The majority of these allegations relate to teachers and support staff having trouble in
managing challenging behaviour and the use of restraint regarded as being unlawful
or contrary to guidance.

In particular, the issue of appropriate restraint and personal protection by teachers
when a child is out of control was a feature of a significant number of the allegations
investigated. Analysis highlighted a positive correlation with a lack of understanding
and interpretation, of the relevant legislation.

The majority of the other referrals investigated related equally to significant harm,
concerning Sexual Abuse and Unsuitability to work with children (may pose a risk of
harm to children - Working Together 2013). The majority of sexual abuse allegations
related to historical allegations and adults’ behaviours in their private lives.

Although there was a predominance of allegations in relation to physical and sexual
abuse, it was notable that the individual circumstances of the allegations varied
significantly. This demonstrates the need for designated professionals and senior
staff responsible for safeguarding to have an awareness of the range of situations in
which children could be harmed and how what meets the threshold for intervention
by the LADO.

Profile of adults that allegations have been made against

4.1 Gender

Of the 46 referrals to the LADO, there were an equal number of women and men
referred. It is important to consider the gender make up of the childcare/education
field when considering this data.

Page 8 of 15



Page 59

Haringey

Gender of Alleged Adults

Although there is no statistical profile of those working directly in these fields,
unpublished extrapolations from the national general household survey and other
data indicate that under 5% of those working in childcare are men, with around 20%
of teachers being male. The gender balance of individuals who have had allegations
made against them will be kept under close scrutiny and reported on in the LADO
quarterly reports with a view to identify the most appropriate action to take to address
any ongoing over presentation of men. The new system for data collation will enable
us to identify the sector of the workforce, the nature of the allegation and the whether
substantiated, unsubstantiated, unfounded or malicious, this detail of information is
essential to determine the necessary action and develop a targeted and effective
partnership response.

4.2 Other equalities indicators

Data captured from April 2013/14 will support reliable analysis of information on
ethnicity and age.

4.3 Employment Sector

The majority of referrals are in relation to adults who work in educational settings.
This correlates with referrals patterns with our neighbouring boroughs. Given that
the educational sector is the biggest employer of people working with children, this is
expected.

Referrals from the education sector came from all types of educational provision and
included both professionally qualified staff and support staff such as teaching
assistants and school cleaners. The majority of referrals came from state schools,
with only one by an Independent Academy. There was an almost even mix between
primary and secondary school referrals, which is consistent with previous reporting
years.

Page 9 of 15



Page 60

Haringey

Employment Sector of Alleged Adults

Voluntary
Organisations

13% Other
0,
/e Residential Setting
Early Years ’ 4%
4% ;‘ _ —

Health
2%

&

There are a low number of referrals from other sections, such as Early Years and
children’s residential provision. The lowest reported sector was Health. There have
yet to be any referrals from Police .

5. Comparative Data

5.1 The number of allegations (46) investigated in the year 2012/13 represents a
considerable decrease from the 87 allegation deemed to have met the threshold in
2011/12. This reduction is a result of successful changes in application of the
thresholds, LADO consultation and advice resulting in addressing issues through
more appropriate channels such as HR procedures or through focused learning and
development.

5.2 During 2012/13, the largest numbers of allegations were made in respect of foster
carers, the majority of these allegations subsequently being withdrawn or found to be
unsubstantiated.  The reduction in referrals that have been converted into
investigations represents further improvement in the appropriate application of
thresholds and focus on situations that meet the criteria for statutory intervention.
Analysis of referrals since October 2012 that have led to investigation and those that
did not meet the threshold has shown that the appropriate decisions have been
made. Feedback from partner agencies including schools and children’s centres
indicate an increasingly high level of satisfaction and understanding of the process
and thresholds.

" Whilst the Metropolitan Police have their own division to deal with allegations against staff (the Police
Complaints Commission), concerns about child protection issues in connection with allegations against
police officers should still be referred to the LADO.

Page 10 of 15



Page 61

X

=

Haringey

6.

6.1

Case resolution timescales

There are two distinct cases captured in the data within this report that are ongoing,
in both instances the alleged perpetrators remain on bail. Both situations are being
regularly monitored by the LADO, the employing organisation and police. All other
cases have been resolved during the reporting period.

6.2 Average length of time to resolve cases was unavailable for the reporting period. The

7.1

new electronic reporting system provides the functionality to report the length of time
taken to resolve cases for 2013/14 (for more information see section 2). However,
from analysis of the concluding strategy meeting minutes it is evident that the most
common factor causing delay in concluding cases is the time taken for cases in
criminal proceedings for decisions made by the Crown Prosecution Service and the
outcome of court appearances.

Substantiation of Referrals

In six months between October and March 2013, 56% of allegations taken to strategy
meeting were substantiated (25% of these led to a criminal prosecution, with half of
this number being convicted and other awaiting the outcome of the proceedings) and
25% of allegations were unsubstantiated of which one was found to be malicious.

7.2 It should be noted that when an allegation is deemed to be unsubstantiated this does

not necessarily equate to it being unfounded, but rather there is insufficient evidence
to substantiate the allegation.

7.3 Cases are managed by the Local Authority, but in the majority instances the police

are the lead agency. The burden of proof required for criminal proceedings is
significantly higher than that when considering if an adult is suitable to work with
children. The police will determine, based on the presenting information and
subsequent investigation if a crime has been committed, if so they will decide
whether to issue a caution or refer to the Crown Prosecution Service. When
considering neglect for example the following scenario is used: a teacher leaves a
vulnerable and disabled child unsupervised in a room for an hour, this cannot be
substantiated by police without significant supporting evidence such as additional
witness statements, CCTV and proof beyond reasonable doubt this was an
intentional and malicious act. If this burden of proof is not met, these issues need to
be considered at the concluding meeting and it needs to be established if this was an
unintentional case of neglect, (such as the teacher assuming a Learning Assistant
was due to take over) of if it was a deliberate neglect of their duties, it is then the HR
process will begin in terms of additional training or other disciplinary action following
the internal investigation.

All of these issues need to be considered by the LADO when making
recommendations to safeguard children.

Development work to be completed in 2013/14

Page 11 of 15



Page 62

X

=

Haringey

The action plan below set out planned service improvement for the next year, this
builds this year achievements and addresses the areas identified for development.

Page 12 of 15



Page 63

X

=

Haringey

Appendix B

The role of the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO)
Overview of role in Haringey

In compliance with Working Together to Safeguard Children - A guide to inter-agency
working to safeguarding and promote the welfare of children, March 2013. Haringey has
a Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) who is involved in the management and has
oversight of individual cases where allegations are made against people who work with
children.

Working Together described the LADO role as providing “advice and guidance to
employers and voluntary organisations, liaising with the police and other agencies and
monitoring the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly as possible
and are consistent with a thorough and fair process.”

In Haringey, the operational role of the LADO is undertaken by a designated Child
Protection Advisor, with oversight by the Head of Service, Safeguarding, Quality
Assurance and Practice Development, which is part Children and Families Service within
the Children and Young People’s Service.

Responsibilities of the LADO

The LADO provides advice and guidance during consultation with the referrer. The
possible outcomes of the consultation are broadly captured under three headings: the
allegation meets the threshold (section 47), local management to address (e.g. through
staff training), local management to take further action (e.g. disciplinary procedure, in
consultation with HR).

Working Together states that agencies employing staff working with children must have
in place clear policies in line with those from the LSCB for dealing with allegations
against people who work with children. An allegation may relate to a person who works
with children who has:

e behaved in a way that has harmed a child, or may have harmed a child;

» possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child; or

» behaved towards a child or children in a way that indicates they may pose a risk of
harm to children.

Where the above criteria are met, the LADO is responsible for chairing:

« a strategy meeting to consider whether there should be:
 a police investigation of a possible criminal offence;

Page 13 of 15



Page 64

X

)
Haringey
e enquiries and assessment by children’s social care about whether a child is in need

of protection or in need of services; and
« consideration by an employer of disciplinary action in respect of the member of staff.

Page 14 of 15



X

=

Haringey

LADO ACTION PLAN IN HARINGEY 2013 / 2014

No Action Responsibility By
1. Confirm data set for LADO activity — including equalities indictors, source of | Head of Service | July 2013
referrals and outcomes Safeguarding QA & PD
2. Produce data on LADO activity, undertake analysis of trends and make | LADO June/July,
recommendations/determine action for single agency or partnership action. September/October,
December/January and end
of 2013/14
3 Carry out a quality audit of LADO as part of the department’s quality | Principal Social Worker | 30 September 2013
assurance programme.
4 LSCB Training for Designated Lead and Named professionals LSCB May, July, November 13 and
February 14
5 Quality Assurance - audit of thresholds for referrals to LADO — analysis of | Child Protection June/July,
referrals not leading to Section 47 investigations Advisors and Head of September/October,
Service — December/January and end
Safeguarding, QA & PD | of 2013/14
6 Discussion with Police and Health on the involvement of the LADO in the | LADO September 2013
investigation of allegations against professionals, ensuring compliance with
Working Together 2013
7 Ongoing communication regarding LADO role to all Designated Leads, | LADO and CPA’s On going.

Named professionals and managers with responsibility for services to
children - including sections where referral levels are low.

Page 15 of 15

G9 abed



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



X

‘/74

Page 67 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey
Briefing for: Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance
Advisory Committee
Title: SCREENING

Lead Officer:

Hilary Corrick, Independent Member

Date:

2" July 2013

1.

INTRODUCTION

Members are aware of changes to the screening of cases referred to
Children and Young People’s Services as a result of the Judicial Review
judgment in March 2013. At our last meeting in April 2013 we considered
the issues raised by the judgment and whether, subsequent to the
judgment, workers were seeking permission to share from parents before
contacting other agencies through the Multi-Agency Strategic Hub
(MASH) process, except in the context of a clear safeguarding
investigation (Section 47).

We were aware that officers were seeking further legal guidance, and
exploring the issues within the London MASH meetings and other forums.
We were also aware that training was being provided to staff within the
service as well as advice and guidance to other agencies.

On behalf of the Committee | undertook to report on the outcome of these
activities and audit a sample of new referrals.

INFORMATION FOR STAFF

A number of workshops have been held for staff in the First Response
service, including the Screening team. A summary of the legal position
has been shared with staff in this service and a number of case
scenarios.

Page 1 of 7



Page 68

Haringey

3. OTHER AGENCIES
Advice and legal guidance has been shared with other agencies,
including those involved in the MASH, and other high referrers such as
voluntary organisations and A & E departments, both individually and
through Haringey Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB).

4. SCREENING AUDIT
At random, on 5 June, | asked for a list of all contacts received on the
previous Friday, 31%' May. There were 23 contacts from the following

sources:
Contact source Number on 315t | Number to
May MASH in April
2013
Police 14 24
Midwife 2 (Police also 4
referred 1 of
these cases)
Other local authority 2
Probation 1 2
Relative/ house member 1 1
GP 1: this went to 1
MASH
Courts (Cafcass) 1 2
A&E 1 3
Haringey employee 1
Voluntary organisation 6
Self referral 3
School 2
London Ambulance Service 2

Page 2 of 7



Page 69

X

‘/’7’4

Haringey
Hospital paediatrics 1
Adult mental health services 1
CAMHS 1
Health visitor 1
Neighbour /friend 1
Member of public 1
Unknown /anonymous 1
Total 24 referrals for | 57
23 cases

As members can see, the vast majority of these cases came from the
police; this is a similar picture to April as a whole, where of 57 referrals to
the MASH, 24 came from the police.

The presenting need at the point of contact on 31%' May was as follows:

Presenting need Number on 31% | During April
May 2013
Domestic violence 5 26
Family member offending 4 4
Housing 3 1
Physical abuse 2 8
Needing universal services 2
Parental mental ill health 2 4
Child’s behaviour 2
Needing information 2 2
Parental substance misuse 1 3
Neglect 2

Page 3 of 7



X

‘/’7’4

Haringey

Page 70

Unborn baby 3
Sexual abuse 3
Sexual exploitation 1
Totals 23 57

Note, the low numbers for April relate only to the numbers of contacts
referred through the MASH process, about a third of all contacts over all.
The figures are not therefore entirely comparable, but they demonstrate
the patterns of contact and presenting needs.

| looked at 13 out of 23 cases in detail:

Age / gender Contact from: | Presenting Outcome
need

F aged 1 month | Police Domestic Mother left home
argument with the baby.
between mother | Family history of
and grandmother | arguments; NFA

UBB due July Midwife and Need for Referral for CAF

police universal

services: Mo
isolated

17 yr old boy Police Argument with Left home. NFA
mother, taking
drugs

13 year old boy | Parent Disabled child, Referred to OT
well known to
CYPS.

13 year old boy | GP to EDT Step mother’s Sec 47 threshold
mental ill health | met; MASH *

2 year old boy | Police Domestic NFA “for now”
argument. Child
previously CPP

Page 4 of 7




X

‘/74

Haringey

Page 71

16 year old girl

A & E and self
referral

Self-harming;
came into office
homeless

Referred to
specialist
housing team.
EDT informed.

CPP

9 year old girl Court (Cafcass) | Request forinfo | Info given **
in private law
hearing
2 month old Police Domestic Not known
baby girl argument previously; NFA
UBB baby due | Enfield Transfer in on Conference to be

held

6 year old girl Referred by Concern re Case only closed
Haringey abuse by brother | 4 weeks before;
employee and neglect discussion as to

way forward. ***

14 year old boy | Police Mother has NFA

mental health
problems

4 year old boy | Police (CAIT) Visiting child Sec 47 threshold

described met; immediate
children hit with | discussion.
belt by Mo. Police

investigation. ****

* This case was extremely well recorded; both the reasons for concern
and the legal basis for undertaking a MASH information sharing.

** The information given to staff about sharing information makes it clear
that there is no need to seek consent when information is sought by a

Court.

*** This was a good referral. The employee in question was told of
concerns by a member of staff from the school attended by the child. She
advised the member of school staff to follow the school’s child protection
procedures and make a referral, but understood her own duty to do so
too. Working Together (2013) states “No professional should assume

Page 5 of 7




X

‘/74

Haringey

Page 72

that someone else will pass on information which they think may be
critical to keeping a child safe.”

This is a family with chronic and longstanding problems of neglect and
discipline. The family became part of the Haringey Families First project
a month ago, and a Team Around the Family (TAF) was set up and the
case was therefore closed to CYPS. With the benefit of hindsight it may
be that the needs of this particular child should be reviewed apart from
other members of the family.

**** Appropriately speedy response.

| found recording that was good in understanding how decisions were
reached; the workshops for staff have emphasised the need for detailed
and timely recording.

Of these 13 cases reviewed only 4 required a referral response; of the 23
cases it would seem that 9 required further assessment/ screening. Only
one case had the benefit of a MASH discussion. Each of these decisions
is a judgment call; some NFAs will return. On the whole these decisions
are taken reasonably quickly and the need for considerations of consent
to contacting other agencies may not be relevant. Nevertheless, prior to
the judgment it is possible there would have been more exploration of the
situations of the 2 small babies where the police reported domestic
arguments.

Indeed, this may be the explanation for the significant fall in the number
of cases referred to the MASH process since the judgement:

Month MASH REFERRALS
February 2013 106

March 2013 114

April 2013 57

This also accounts for the fact that cases reach referral stage more
speedily — 6.5 days from contact to referral in February and March this
year; 4.5 days in April. It is the view of the team manager of the
Screening Team, with whom | spent some time on 5" June, that, as staff

Page 6 of 7




Page 73

X

‘/74

Haringey

become more confident about the legal parameters around consent
issues and their responsibilities, and referrers become used to asking for
permission before they refer, numbers referred to the MASH process will
rise again. There must be concern that other agencies will begin to
withdraw staff and commitment to the MASH process as they perceive
their resources under-utilised. At present | am told this is not an issue. It
is no doubt an area that Members will want to be reassured is kept under
review.

Page 7 of 7



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75 Agenda Iltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Matters arising
	6 Terms of reference
	7 Performance Assessment - End of Year 2012/13
	Performance appendice

	8 Adoption Performance Update
	9 Update on the MOSAiC programme
	10 Local Authority Designated Officer Annual Report 2012/13
	11 Report from Independent member
	14 Children's Safeguarding and Information Sharing - Legal Advice

